
Small Town and Rural Committee 
Small Town and Rural Committee Meeting I Virtual Only 
Thursday, May 26, 2022 | 12:00 p.m. – 2:00 p.m.  
Via Zoom | Meeting ID: 884 6080 9037 | Passcode: 047632| Call-in: 888-788-0099 

AGENDA 
1. Introductions, March and April Meeting Recaps, and Approval of March Meeting Minutes (Gov.

Abell)
2. WSBA Updates (Gov. Abell and Julianne Unite)
3. WSBA Career Center Discounts (Sara Niegowski, Chief Communications Officer)
4. Washington Attorney General’s Office of Military and Veteran Legal Assistance (Beatrice Lucas

and Madeleine Shojai)
5. Subcommittee Report Updates

a. Community, Education, and Outreach (Kari Petrasek, Chair)
b. Pipeline Placement Program (Laurie Powers, Chair)
c. Job Opportunities and Clearinghouse (Betsy Penoyar, Chair)

6. Bar News Article Update (Allison Foreman)
7. FY23 Committee Budget
8. Committee Applications, Recruiting, and Recommendations Update
9. July Meeting Date
10. Other Business
11. Next Steps/ Conclusion
12. Adjournment

2021 - 2022 STAR Committee Meeting Schedule 
October 26, 2021 Meeting: 3 – 5:00 p.m. Virtual Only 
November 18, 2021 Meeting: 12 - 2:00 p.m. Virtual Only 
January 20, 2022 Meeting: 12 - 2:00 p.m. Virtual Only 
February 17, 2022 Meeting: 12 - 2:00 p.m. Virtual Only 
March 17, 2022 Meeting: 12 - 2:00 p.m. Virtual Only 
April 21, 2022 Meeting: 12 - 2:00 p.m. Virtual Only 
May 26, 2022 Meeting: 12 - 2:00 p.m. Virtual Only 
June 16, 2022 Meeting: 12 - 2:00 p.m. Virtual Only 
July 21, 2022 Meeting: 12 - 2:00 p.m. Virtual Only 
August 18, 2022 Meeting: 12 - 2:00 p.m. Virtual Only 
September 15, 2022 Meeting: 12 - 2:00 p.m. Virtual Only 

1

https://wsba.zoom.us/j/88460809037?pwd=QkwycDlvaW44eW9SWjRnTDczUlpVQT09


2



Small Town and Rural Committee Charter Effective: July 16, 2021 
as approved by the 
WSBA Board of 
Governors 

Purpose 

The WSBA Small Town and Rural (STAR) Committee is committed to strengthen and support the 
practice of law in the rural communities throughout Washington state. Members of the STAR 
Committee will work to ensure that the practice of law in rural communities is present, growing, and 
thriving.   

Practitioners in rural communities are few and far between. Additionally, many of these practitioners 
are nearing retirement without a clear plan of succession for their clients, leaving a void of access to 
legal representation and counsel. The STAR Committee will guide policy & program development, 
serves as ambassadors between the WSBA and these communities, explore and advocate for creative 
and innovative solutions, and regularly assess the legal landscape in rural communities to determine if 
WSBA policy, advocacy and program development require further resource for sustainability and 
improvements.   

The STAR Committee aligns with the authorized activities outlined in General Rule 12. More 
specifically, GR 12.1 (a) articulates the Washington Supreme Court’s regulatory objective to provide, 
in part, “meaningful access to justice. . .” while GR 12.1(d) strives for “affordable and accessible legal 
services.”  In addition, the STAR Committee aligns with the authorized activities outlined in GR 12.2, in 
particular by providing “services to members and the public,” and “fostering collegiality among its 
members and goodwill between the legal profession and the public.”    

Further, the STAR Committee furthers the WSBA mission to serve the public and the members of the 
Bar by providing focused attention on the unique needs of residents and members in rural areas both 
by improving access to legal practitioners in rural communities and outreach and development of a 
pipeline of younger rural residents to pursue a legal career and serve their communities.  

Definition of “Rural” 

For the purpose of the STAR Committee and reflective of Washington’s unique geographic and socio-
geographic landscape, the definition of “rural” is as follows: 

Based on the definitions produced by the U.S. Department of Agriculture Economic Research 
Service (ERS) and an overview of Washington county population, we focused on counties with 
populations of less than 50,000 and more than 2,500. These areas are considered ‘urban non-
metro areas not part of larger labor markets’ by ERS. As part of the working definition, and for 
ease, we have termed these counties as ‘rural.’ Based upon WA county population data, 
we’ve pursued a hypothesis that counties with 30,000 or more as rural, but likely more 

3



adjacent to a labor market and perhaps have a varying set of circumstances that may differ 
from counties that are less than 30,000.  

Composition 

Members of the STAR Committee should have demonstrated experience and/or interest in a thriving 
legal practice in Washington’s rural communities. The STAR Committee will consist of 13 members 
and are outlined as: 

 Chair (voting member)

 2 Current or Former WSBA Board of Governors Members (voting members)

 1 Active WSBA Member At Large (voting member)

 4 Active WSBA Members from rural communities - see above for definition of “rural” (voting
members)

 1 Active WSBA Young Lawyer Member, as defined in WSBA Bylaws (voting member)

 3 Law School Representatives (voting members, must be currently employed with a WA Law
School which is not currently represented on the Committee.)

 1 Active WSBA Lawyer Member currently employed with a Qualified Legal Service Provider
(QLSP)(voting member).

WSBA Staff Liaison: Member Services and Engagement Manager or staff member in the Advancement 
Department, non-voting 
Board of Governor Liaison: as assigned annually, non-voting. 

Terms 

 Chair: two-year term

 Members: three-year term

Initial Committee Terms 

The first appointments to the STAR Committee should effectuate a staggered rotation of STAR 
Committee members. Therefore, the following terms are in place for the first appointment cycle only. 
All subsequent terms should adhere to the term limits stated above. STAR Committee member 
serving an initial term less than three years, should be considered an incomplete term. Therefore, the 
member is eligible to serve two subsequent complete three-year terms in WSBA Bylaws.  

 2 Active WSBA Members
1 member with two-year term, 1 member with three-year term.

 4 Active WSBA Members from rural communities (see above for definition)
1 member with one-year term, 1 member with two years term, 2 members with three-years term.

 3 Law School Representatives (voting, must be currently employed with a WA Law School)

 1 member with one-year term, 1 member with two-years term, 1 member with three-years term.

The following positions will begin as a standard term as set forth in this charter. 

 Chair

 1 Active WSBA Young Lawyer Member

4



 1 Active WSBA Lawyer Member currently employed with a Qualified Legal Service Provider
(QLSP).

Scope of Work 

The scope of the STAR Committee’s work will focus on what the WSBA is uniquely positioned to do in 
supporting a sustaining and thriving environment for the practice of law in Washington’s rural 
communities. The STAR Committee will work with all relevant and interested stakeholders to 
collaborate where needed. The provision of direct legal services and civil legal aid to the public is 
outside the scope of the STAR Committee.  

Measures of Success 

 Increased awareness of the issues and possible solutions to address any gap in practicing
members in rural communities.

 A sustainable pipeline of legal practitioners in rural communities.

 Increased numbers of legal practitioners in rural communities.

 The establishment of funding for programs and initiatives for the practice of law in rural
communities.

STAR Committee Roles 

1. Community Education and Outreach
Coordinated efforts to educate members and potential members about the unique needs,
opportunities and benefits of a rural practice. This can include, but should not be limited to,
comprehensive information on WSBA’s website, features in WSBA publications, presentations
at high schools, law schools and community colleges. Meetings and events, such as a summit
or symposium, to highlight the issue, convene interested stakeholders to share their concerns
and strategize on possible solutions.

2. Pipeline and Placement Program(s)
Develop WSBA programming, or WSBA supported/partnered programming designed to build
a pipeline of practitioners in rural areas as well as an incentive program to encourage
members to explore a rural practice on a time-limited or multi-year timeframe. This role
should explore a possible collaboration or strategic overlap with WSBA existing and future
mentorship program(s). In particular, this role will require extensive strategic planning and
identification of external stakeholder support and additional funding sources. Coordinate with
law schools and other stakeholders regarding economic incentives to practice in rural areas.

3. Job Opportunities and Clearinghouse
Utilize existing and future WSBA resources to support and highlight job opportunities in rural
communities. This role should include making it easier, and perhaps more cost-effective, to
add job postings to WSBA’s service. Develop a clearing house to assist retiring members with
succession planning and the buying/selling of a practice.

Committee Evaluation 

5



The STAR Committee should conduct an assessment within five years from the date of Board of 
Governors’ approval by 1) conducting a survey of rural practitioners to provide stakeholder feedback 
regarding the impact of this Committee to effectuate change in these areas, 2) assessing the scope of 
work to reflect impact and progress in this area and align with trends in the greater legal community, 
and 3) earnestly examining if the Committee is necessary to continue the scope of work.  

6



Small Town and Rural Committee 

Small Town and Rural Committee Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, March 17, 2022, | 12:03 p.m. – 1:35 p.m. 

Virtual meeting via Zoom 

Committee Members Present:  Allison Foreman, Cindy Yeung, Elizabeth Penoyar, Governor Hunter 
Abell, Kathryn Burke, Laurie Powers, Merf Ehman, Rusty McGuire, Sarah Cuellar  

Committee Members Absent: Governor Sunitha Anjilvel, Zachary Bryant 

WSBA Staff: Julianne Unite – Member Services and Engagement Manager, Chelle Gegax – Member 
Services and Engagement Administrative Assistant, Mike Kroner – Outreach Specialist, Margeaux Green 
– Practice Management Advisor

Public Attendees: Anna Burica, Lauren McElroy 

Introductions, February Meeting Recap, and Approval of February 
Meeting Minutes (Gov. Abell)  
STAR Committee Chair, Governor Hunter Abell, called the meeting to order at 12:03 p.m. WSBA Staff 
were called upon to introduce themselves to those in attendance. WSBA Staff Member Mike Kroner 
advised that the APEX Award deadline for nominations had been extended to April 1. Public Attendee 
Anna Burica from the Okanagan Bar Association shared that this was her first time in attendance. 
Governor Abell provided a recap of the February meeting including discussion on the proposed 
fellowship program, subcommittee reports, and attorney profiles in WSBA Bar News. On motion by 
STAR Committee Member Elizabeth (Betsy) Penoyar, seconded by STAR Committee Member Allison 
Foreman, the STAR Committee by unanimous vote (9-0-0) approved the February 2022 meeting 
minutes. 

WSBA Updates (Gov. Abell and Julianne) 
Governor Abell advised that Board of Governors (BOG) has continued their discussions on bar 
restructuring, and it is anticipated to finish these discussions in August. WSBA Staff Liaison, Julianne 
Unite, reported on policies surrounding in person WSBA events and visits to WSBA offices. The BOG 
recently voted to amend the current policy toward WSBA volunteers and vaccination/COVID 
requirements. The amendment now requires a booster shot to be considered fully vaccinated. Julianne 
will circulate the finalized policy to the Committee when it becomes available. Julianne also advised that 
masks are no longer required when visiting in person at WSBA offices as WSBA is compliant with King 
County guidelines. Please reach out to Julianne with any questions regarding this policy. Governor Abell 
reminded those in attendance of the April 15 deadline for applications to serve as the At-large BOG 
position, as well as the WSBA President position.  

7



Subcommittee Report Updates 
Community, Education, and Outreach (Kari Petrasek, Chair) 
Mike advised that the Community, Education, and Outreach Subcommittee discussed subcommittee 
reorganization and the Ambassador Program Proposal. The subcommittee felt that the Ambassador 
Program Proposal could display quality of life aspects to rural practice and the ability to have a greater 
work-life balance. Mike also commented on a secret shopper style program that could allow insight 
from members on how to make those coming into rural practice more comfortable.   
Pipeline Placement Program (Laurie Powers, Chair)  
STAR Committee Member Laurie Powers shared that the Pipeline Placement Program Subcommittee 
will hold standing meetings on the second Tuesday of the month from 2-4 pm. Laurie reported that 
members spent time processing what the intended purpose and next steps should be. The 
subcommittee created a vision of what they feel the subcommittee should be. Each subcommittee 
member is taking a few states from the list that Governor Abell previously provided to review. The 
subcommittee discussed establishing loan repayment assistance program for rural practice students and 
an alternative spring break program to send students to rural communities for non-profit or legal aid. 
There was also discussion of a hybrid law school APR 6 partnership and whether law schools can or 
would help support this. The subcommittee offered suggestions on rural fellowship and rural 
mentorship programs. Subcommittee members will do assigned research, and review proposals 
provided by Betsy and Governor Abell and report their findings at the next STAR Committee meeting.  
Job Opportunities and Clearinghouse (Betsy Penoyar, Chair) 
Besty commented that there was some discussion on the reorganization of subcommittees, but the 
subcommittee felt unsure of how to do that without more defined direction of what the subcommittee 
is going to accomplish. STAR Committee Member Sarah Cuellar reported that the subcommittee would 
like to start a stakeholder list serve for members to utilize to for job postings, and other communications 
respective to this committees’ goals. Julianne commented on the WSBA tool that is used for list serves 
and advised that it would be beneficial to the subcommittee to come up with a clear purpose for the list 
serve and guidelines for usage which can be communicated to those looking to join. Julianne also 
advised that WSBA relies on the leaders of the list serve to develop and communicate guidelines to 
subscribers. Lauren McElroy asked for clarification between the list serve and the WSBA job board: 
would list serve be only for job opportunities or would the list serve have additional purpose. Sarah 
advised that the subcommittee envisioned the list serve getting those who are specifically in rural areas 
together and able to communicate in a more defined space. Sarah will review the information provided 
by Julianne regarding list serve guidelines, moderation, and usage, and will report back with more 
information at the next STAR Committee meeting.  

Ambassador Program Proposal (Betsy Penoyar) 
Betsy reported on the Ambassador Program Proposal that would have six geographical regions and 
program representatives from each region, with the intent to visit the law schools and present to 
students. Betsy feels that this would be more direct contact to students. The Program & representatives 
would present the opportunity to invite students out to their respective areas, show the students 
around and be a direct point of contact to students. This Program would not put a lot of pressure on law 
schools, as a majority of the administration would fall to Program representatives. In addition to the 
Ambassador Program, Betsy hopes to have a webpage that shows benefits of the program as well as a 
list serve to connect rural practice group, STAR Committee, job opportunities, and students/law schools. 
Governor Abell commented that he liked that this proposal was geographically centered. Laurie 
commented that having a speakers bureau identified would work well and it would be important to 

8



work with career services offices in law schools, as well as looking to the law schools for their expertise 
in what is the best time to contact and how to reach students to gain the best interest. Mike asked for 
clarification on whether the proposal intended to have 12 representatives visiting each law school at 
one time. Betsy advised that it could be all 12 or less, depending on availability. Mike commented on 
further utilizing WSBA's social media presence. STAR Committee Member Cindy Yeung posted an article 
in the chat - https://scholarship.law.uwyo.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1460&context=wlr.  She feels 
that it would be very helpful in moving forward. STAR Committee Member Rusty McGuire commented 
that the University of Idaho could also be included in law school presentations. Laurie commented that 
it would be important to work cohesively with resources that are already in place at the law schools. 
STAR Committee Member Merf Ehman commented that they felt these were more pieces of what could 
be done by the committee and felt that we needed a more overall pulled together proposal; that the 
existing proposals are really implementation ideas. Governor Abell encouraged other Committee 
members to also submit proposals of their own so that the Committee could come together and create 
something. Governor Abell invited WSBA staff member Margeaux Green to introduce herself. WSBA 
Practice Management Advisor Margeaux Green commented that works with solo and small practice 
attorneys in supporting their business practice.  

Posting of Rural Job Opportunities by WSBA (Katie Burke) 
STAR Committee Member Kathryn Burke (Katie) commented that WSBA is offering free job posting for 
prosecutor’s offices and that this resource has been very beneficial to her office, which is both 
understaffed and underfunded. Katie asked if WSBA could possibly extend this offer to all rural 
practitioners that meet a certain threshold. Julianne commented that WSBA did offer discounts to solo 
and small firm attorneys to post and could investigate offering a standing discount to rural practitioners. 
Julianne would need to reach out to Margaret Morgan in WSBA’s Communications Department to see 
what options would be available. Sarah commented that she saw need for both the list serve as well as 
posting on the WSBA job boards. Sarah advised she would be happy to bring a more complete proposal 
for the list serve including guidelines, how to join and other details as discussed by Julianne back to the 
next meeting.   

Potential Subcommittee Reorganization (Gov. Abell) 
Governor Abell commented on the potential reorganization of the existing subcommittees as there has 
been a lot of discussion of overlap within subcommittees. Governor Abell opened the floor to 
Committee members to provide input on whether the subcommittees needed to be reorganized. Betsy 
commented that she felt they did overlap, but also feels that they should define what each 
subcommittee is accomplishing before they decide upon reorganization. Laurie commented that she 
also felt that they needed a bit more time before reorganizing, to allow to determine what goals the 
Committee is aiming for.  

STAR Committee Recruitment and Appointments (Julianne Unite) 
Julianne advised that applications are now open on myWSBA for many volunteer positions. Current & 
upcoming vacancies on the STAR Committee include Chair, Rural Member, Gonzaga Law School 
Representative, University of Washington Law School Representative, BOG/Former BOG Representative. 
Julianne also advised that current STAR Committee members may reapply for positions and must do so 
through the myWSBA portal by April 15.  

9

https://scholarship.law.uwyo.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1460&context=wlr


Rural Justice Collaborative 
Julianne referred to the Rural Justice Collaborative (RJC) newsletter in the meeting materials packet 
starting on page 10 and suggested a possible collaboration with the Rural Justice Collaboration as a 
resource related to the STAR Committees mission or at the very least as information on what other 
entities are doing nationally. The RJC is led from the court level rather than bar association level. 
Governor Abell commented that he found the article helpful for generating ideas.  

Other Business 
Rusty commented on possibly funding the STAR Committee’s initiatives through alternative Business 
and Occupation Tax payment programs and or whether we could set up a fund with the Washington 
State Bar (WSB) Foundation to accept donations for the Ambassador Program. Cindy commented on the 
law review article she provided, which has funding coming cities and counties. Cindy suggested maybe 
having city and/or municipality representatives in this Committee. Merf commented that they felt that 
this was a great idea. Julianne advised that WSBA provides staffing for the nonprofit WSBA Foundation 
that could accept donations but would need to research more specifics and details.  

Next Steps/ Conclusion 
Next meeting schedule for April 21, from noon-2 p.m. 

Adjournment 
Governor Abell adjourned the meeting at 1:35 p.m.  

10



1325 4th Avenue  |  Suite 600  |  Seattle, WA 98101-2539 | 800-945-WSBA  |  206-443-WSBA  |  questions@wsba.org  |  www.wsba.org 

TEMPLATE 

TO: WSBA Board of Governors Nominations Committee 

President-elect Dan Clark, Co-Chair 

Governor Lauren Boyd, Co-Chair 

FROM: Name, Position 

CC: Paris Eriksen, Volunteer Engagement Advisor 

DATE: [MONTH, DAY, YEAR] 

RE: Recommendation(s) for Appointment/Nomination to the [NAME OF ENTITY] 

APPOINT/NOMINATE: 
• 

Please include here a brief memo that answers the following questions in reasonable detail (i.e., beyond one-word 
answers): 

1. Who is on your recommendations team?
2. When did your team meet to determine its recommendations?
3. Did your team interview the applicants? If so, what questions did your team ask?
4. What criteria did your team use to evaluate the applicants, and how were those criteria applied to

determine which applicants to recommend?
5. If the Nominations Committee approves the above recommendations, will your entity have any additional

appointments or recommendations? If applicable, please share why, if there were more applicants than
open opportunities, your entity still seeks to fill further vacancies in the future. For example, perhaps you
knew that two applicants had already been selected by another entity or did not meet certain criteria
required by court rule such as applicant’s home district, occupation, or years of practice.

For more information regarding this cover memo and the nomination process, please see the next page. 

11



WSBA Board of Governors Nominations Committee 
Cover Memo and Nominations Process – More Information 

1. Purpose of Cover Memo. The purpose of the requested cover memo is to provide the Nominations Committee
with information about how each entity’s nominating team conducted its applicant review process and what
factors the team considered when selecting those recommended, including how each nomination fits with
WSBA’s best practices regarding volunteer engagement, and WSBA’s principles of diversity, equity, inclusion,
and fairness. (For more information on the latter, see Guidance for WSBA Committee and Board Nominating
Teams.)

2. Background of Nominations Committee. In 2016, the WSBA Board of Governors (BOG) delegated approval of
nominations and appointments for most WSBA volunteer positions to its Nominations Committee. The
Nominations Committee is comprised of seven current BOG members, each appointed by the WSBA President
for a one-year term. The staff liaison to the Nominations Committee is WSBA Volunteer Engagement Advisor,
Paris Eriksen.

3. Nominations Process. The Nominations Committee takes several types of actions, including the appointment of
all members of WSBA committees, boards, councils, and workgroups, and the WSBA representatives of external
entities. More details on the nominations process for the latter entities can be found in the WSBA Boards and
Committees Policy. Additionally, the Nominations Committee approves and/or nominates applicants to certain
Washington Supreme Court-created entities. More details on the nominations process for such court-created
entities can typically be found in the relevant court rule.

4. Nominations Committee Action. The Nominations Committee meets monthly and reviews recommendations
from various entities’ nominations teams as well as the respective applicant materials. All approvals and
nominations made by the Nominations Committee are sent to the entire BOG for review. If an action is flagged
for reconsideration by two or more BOG members, the action will be discussed at the next BOG meeting; all
other actions will become final one week after being sent to the BOG.

Please contact WSBA staff liaison Paris Eriksen (parise@wsba.org) or a member of the Nominations Committee 
with any questions. 

12

https://www.wsba.org/docs/default-source/legal-community/volunteer/volunteer-toolbox/17-guidance-for-nominating-teams.pdf?sfvrsn=4afc3cf1_5
https://www.wsba.org/docs/default-source/legal-community/volunteer/volunteer-toolbox/17-guidance-for-nominating-teams.pdf?sfvrsn=4afc3cf1_5
https://www.wsba.org/about-wsba/who-we-are/board-of-governors/nominations-appointments
https://www.wsba.org/docs/default-source/legal-community/volunteer/volunteer-toolbox/board-of-governors-committees-policy-amended-september-2020.pdf?sfvrsn=966915f1_4
https://www.wsba.org/docs/default-source/legal-community/volunteer/volunteer-toolbox/board-of-governors-committees-policy-amended-september-2020.pdf?sfvrsn=966915f1_4
mailto:parise@wsba.org


July 2021 

Small Town and Rural Committee 
Volunteer Position Description

The Small Town and Rural (STAR) Committee was established by the Board of Governors with approval 
of its charter in April 2021. The STAR Committee is committed to strengthening and supporting the 
practice of law in the rural communities throughout Washington state. The STAR Committee furthers 
the WSBA mission to serve the public and the members of the Bar by providing focused attention on the 
unique needs of residents and members in rural areas. 

Position overview: The STAR Committee will guide policy and program development, serve as 
ambassadors between the WSBA and these communities, explore and advocate for creative and 
innovative solutions that further the goals of strengthening and supporting the practice of law in rural 
communities. The three main focus areas of the Committee are: 

1. Community Education and Outreach
2. Pipeline and Placement Program(s)
3. Job Opportunities and Clearinghouse.

See the Committee charter for more information. 

Time commitment: Given that the STAR Committee is focused on and will largely be composed of rural 
practitioners, attendance to meetings will be primarily and predominantly virtual.  As this Committee is 
new, it is anticipated that meetings in the first year may be monthly for 2 – 2.5 hours for the first 
quarter, with meetings thereafter being monthly for 60-90 minutes. Subcommittees may meet between 
meetings and there may be additional work completed by members outside of the meeting schedule.  

In accordance with the Charter, the initial terms will be staggered to implement a regular rotation of 
incoming committee members. After the initial round of appointments, all subsequent appointments 
will be for a three-year term with eligibility to be reappointed for a second term. Committee Chair will 
serve a two-year term. 

Requirements: Applicants must be active WSBA members, unless otherwise stated in the charter. One 
emeritus pro bono position is available. There are no requirements for years of practice or practice area. 
Applicants should be committed to advancing WSBA’s mission to serve the public and champion justice, 
through pro bono and public service-oriented opportunities.  A willingness to attend and participate in 
the meetings and workgroups is required.  

Preferred qualifications and skills: Interest and/or experience practicing law in Washington’s rural 
communities and/or developing a practitioner pipeline to support growth of legal practitioners in rural 
communities. Applicants should be solution-oriented, collaborative, and dedicated to Washington’s 
rural communities.    

Benefits:  

 Develop and contribute to a deeper understanding of the unique needs, opportunities, and
benefits of a rural practice

 Opportunity to explore creative solutions.
 Create connections, build relationships, and network with practitioners in Washington’s rural

communities as well as law students and members of the public.

13



July 2021 

 Enhance leadership development through program development, project management, and
committee work

Reimbursement policy: This is an unpaid volunteer position. Reasonable travel and other expenses will 
be reimbursed per the WSBA Expense Reimbursement Policy.  

Selection and appointment process:  The initial group of candidates will be reviewed and nominated by 
the current Rural Practice Project Team which consists of staff, members of the Board of Governors, 
WSBA members, Washington Young Lawyers Committee members, and law school representatives. 
Subsequently, candidates will be reviewed by a team including the committee chair, staff liaison, and 
BOG liaison. Recommendations are made to the Board of Governor's Nominations Committee, which 
makes the final appointments. 

For further information: https://www.wsba.org/connect-serve/committees-boards-other-groups/small-
town-and-rural-committee  

How to apply: See instructions at www.wsba.org/joincommittee. Questions about the application? 
Email barleaders@wsba.org. 

14

https://www.wsba.org/connect-serve/committees-boards-other-groups/small-town-and-rural-committee
https://www.wsba.org/connect-serve/committees-boards-other-groups/small-town-and-rural-committee
http://www.wsba.org/joincommittee
mailto:barleaders@wsba.org


4/19/22, 9:17 AM Why Young Attorneys Fear Working in Rural Areas and Why They Shouldn’t – NWSidebar

https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2022/03/22/why-young-attorneys-fear-working-in-rural-areas-and-why-they-shouldnt/ 1/7

W hen the towns of Malden and Pine City were destroyed by fire in 2020, the residents were left with
nothing and are still trying to pick up the pieces.

They need help dealing with government agencies and state agencies—and I get calls daily for assistance.
Most can’t afford an attorney but they still need the help. The need actually has increased with the

housing crisis since some of the houses in rural areas are less than $100,000, making them affordable for
people moving from larger towns, and they still have the same legal needs as they would in an urban area.

Why Young Attorneys Fear Working in
Rural Areas and Why They Shouldn’t

March 22,
2022



15

https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/


4/19/22, 9:17 AM Why Young Attorneys Fear Working in Rural Areas and Why They Shouldn’t – NWSidebar

https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2022/03/22/why-young-attorneys-fear-working-in-rural-areas-and-why-they-shouldnt/ 2/7

Learn More about

the Star Committee

The WSBA Small Town and

Rural Practice (STAR)

Committee is committed to

strengthen and support the

practice of law in the rural

communities throughout

Washington state. Visit the

STAR Committee page to

learn more and find out how

to attend its next meeting.

We struggle to hire and retain lawyers in rural areas for several reasons. Usually it has to do with spouses
and employment opportunities. The rural areas are then left with no attorney assistance.

The newest challenge is the cultural differences between rural and urban people. We hear now from
students that they don’t want to work or reside “out there with those people.” That is based on social

media and cable news exaggerating the differences between the rural and urban settings.

Social media and cable news. It’s not real. Davenport is 20 minutes
from Lake Roosevelt and the majority of the residents there are from

urban communities. I meet with them daily in my practice and they all
laugh when asked what the perception was versus reality. Most have

lived here for years or are COVID refugees and will never leave.

When we do hire attorneys, they are encouraged to live here in the
rural communities and become members of the bigger community by

joining local service organizations, churches, or sports leagues. Rural
clients want to know you are shopping local and living local. It can be a
shock for young attorneys to run into their clients in a grocery store or

while playing basketball, but it creates a connection deeper than a one-
off meeting.

I was raised on a farm homesteaded by my great-grandparents in 1883.
I attended school in Rosalia, then did my undergraduate work at
Eastern Washington University and law school at the University of

Idaho before starting practice in 1989.

Our office began in Davenport in the 1930s and has expanded to acquire practices in Odessa, Ritzville, St.

John, Rosalia, and Colfax. I practice in the areas that surround agricultural production, transition
planning, tax planning, estate planning, and probate.

For someone like myself, the strangest thing is meeting a group of law students who are fearful of

practicing in rural areas because they don’t know what needs the clients have. I assure them the needs are
the same but the clients might drive a tractor or combine instead of a car. They might have boots that

smell of cow pasture but have real needs such as acquiring real estate, wills, and planning. The
misconception is that there is something different about the people and many young students don’t feel
comfortable working in an area that doesn’t have a nearby Starbucks, or other urban staples.

I often find myself perplexed by the fact that law students are worried about the political leanings of
people who live here. Most rural clients are proud, independent, and conservative. They would also give

you the shirt off their back if you needed it. I have a married gay couple who I have worked with for years
who live here and, at first, were fearful of their neighbors with conservative views. They were shocked
when, year after year, those same neighbors kept their driveway clear after snowstorms. And they are

now dear friends.

16

https://www.wsba.org/connect-serve/committees-boards-other-groups/small-town-and-rural-committee


4/19/22, 9:17 AM Why Young Attorneys Fear Working in Rural Areas and Why They Shouldn’t – NWSidebar

https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2022/03/22/why-young-attorneys-fear-working-in-rural-areas-and-why-they-shouldnt/ 3/7

What Happened in the Washington Legislature in 2022: A WSBA Wrap Up

Legal Fee Tax Deduction Gets Easier

About the Author

L.R. “Rusty” McGuire. Rusty advises clients in all aspects of elder law, estate planning,

and estate administration. He also has extensive knowledge in all areas of agricultural law,
including estate and tax planning for families, family corporations, and partnerships.
Rusty guides families dealing with farm and business issues during the transition of

generations. He also advises families on farm real estate transaction planning, and on
planning and appeals dealing with Federal farm programs administered by FSA and NRCS.

Perceptions can be dangerous. I recently did a will for a young Ukrainian who was going to assist in the
evacuation effort. Within days we had raised funds for him by visiting the local tavern and passing the hat

for funds. Perceptions perplex me since they are not accurate and, more often, are more dangerous than
the truth.

Career Management, Featured, New & Young Lawyers, On the Docket, Practice Management, Recent

NWSidebar









RECENT CONTRIBUTORS

Mark Cooke Anne Knapp Amos N. Guiora Ralph Flick

Search … 

17

https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2022/03/17/what-happened-in-the-washington-legislature-in-2022-a-wsba-wrap-up/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2022/04/05/legal-fee-tax-deduction-gets-easier/
http://nwsidebar.wsba.org/?s=Rusty+McGuire
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/category/career-management/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/category/featured/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/category/new-young-lawyers/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/category/on-the-docket/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/category/practice-management/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/category/recent/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/author/wastatebar/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/?s=Mark+Cooke&submit=
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/?s=Mark+Cooke&submit=
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/?s=Anne+Knapp&submit=
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/?s=Anne+Knapp&submit=
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2021/03/01/are-bystanders-complicit-the-holocaust-as-foundation-for-crimes-of-omission/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2021/03/01/are-bystanders-complicit-the-holocaust-as-foundation-for-crimes-of-omission/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org//?s=Ralph+Flick
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org//?s=Ralph+Flick


4/19/22, 9:17 AM Why Young Attorneys Fear Working in Rural Areas and Why They Shouldn’t – NWSidebar

https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2022/03/22/why-young-attorneys-fear-working-in-rural-areas-and-why-they-shouldnt/ 4/7

ARCHIVES

Select Month

SELECT A TOPIC

Select Category

FOLLOW BLOG VIA EMAIL

Get new content delivered directly to your inbox.

Email Address

Subscribe via Email

LIKE US ON FACEBOOK

18

https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/?s=Sarah+Burke&submit=
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2019/06/18/how-to-win-your-case-using-the-latest-discovery-technology/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2019/06/18/how-to-win-your-case-using-the-latest-discovery-technology/
https://nwsidebar.wsba.org//?s=felix+neals
https://www.facebook.com/wastatebar.main


4/19/22, 9:17 AM Why Young Attorneys Fear Working in Rural Areas and Why They Shouldn’t – NWSidebar

https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2022/03/22/why-young-attorneys-fear-working-in-rural-areas-and-why-they-shouldnt/ 5/7

FOLLOW US ON TWITTER

Washington State Bar
Association
18 hours ago

National Volunteer Week is back and in full
swing! Take a look at past WSBA volunteer
Q&A's on NWSidebar and get to know some of
our WSBA volunteers.

Washington State Bar AssocWashington State Bar Assoc……
4,184 followers4,184 followers

Follow Page Share

19

https://www.facebook.com/wastatebar.main?fref=nf
https://www.facebook.com/wastatebar.main/posts/pfbid02iFWGeMiwFDuiA53pVZdLzhBozEoVmTw9SLadimcPcbUru65TqRnQ4jfT6Mw2DUMPl
https://www.facebook.com/wastatebar.main/posts/pfbid02iFWGeMiwFDuiA53pVZdLzhBozEoVmTw9SLadimcPcbUru65TqRnQ4jfT6Mw2DUMPl
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fow.ly%2FvRoW50IKXYG&h=AT2JOuF_aetz9DiL7CxpDlfYHeAvgkezot7_y3HtNrJ4yu5zciD_YpV0QF9sOjg0EuoWJcOQf8maCk0NBNQ5WKyu8RLyO4gMZGeU94dHiwgIii1r6TyWSK7I8x1eTkVqCCgEuXe4fahrYVNZsRYP24NxPrK2BjP3CsA6SEQESJk_bFYKWo9uKNbp7n4r
https://www.facebook.com/90151929673
https://www.facebook.com/90151929673
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?app_id=249643311490&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2F90151929673&display=popup&ref=plugin&src=page
https://www.facebook.com/90151929673


4/19/22, 9:17 AM Why Young Attorneys Fear Working in Rural Areas and Why They Shouldn’t – NWSidebar

https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2022/03/22/why-young-attorneys-fear-working-in-rural-areas-and-why-they-shouldnt/ 6/7

Embed View on Twitter

Tweets by  @WAStateBar

18h

20h

21h

National Volunteer Week is back and in full 
swing! Take a look at past WSBA volunteer 
Q&A's on NWSidebar and get to know some 
of our WSBA volunteers. ow.ly/8CRY50IKXYH 

 Washington State Bar Association Retweeted

Representation matters! 
https://twitter.com/WAStateBar/status/1516129
581815717895 

A Portrait of Justice: Take a look at some of 
the newest Supreme Court Justice portraits. 
ow.ly/72uV50IKXXL 

Washington State Bar Association
@WAStateBar

Robert Chang
@KorematsuCtr

Washington State Bar Association
@WAStateBar

A Portrait of Justice - Washington State Bar…
Until recently, the history of many Washington …
wabarnews.org

20

https://publish.twitter.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FWAStateBar
https://twitter.com/WAStateBar
https://twitter.com/WAStateBar
https://support.twitter.com/articles/20175256
https://twitter.com/WAStateBar/status/1516164673154035718
https://twitter.com/KorematsuCtr/status/1516134139090530304
https://twitter.com/WAStateBar/status/1516129581815717895
https://t.co/aX77lXZKP1
https://twitter.com/intent/like?tweet_id=1516164673154035718
https://twitter.com/WAStateBar/status/1516129581815717895
https://twitter.com/intent/like?tweet_id=1516134139090530304
https://t.co/xRk9MkKlgE
https://twitter.com/intent/like?tweet_id=1516129581815717895
https://twitter.com/WAStateBar
https://twitter.com/WAStateBar
https://twitter.com/KorematsuCtr
https://twitter.com/KorematsuCtr
https://twitter.com/WAStateBar
https://twitter.com/WAStateBar
https://t.co/xRk9MkKlgE


4/19/22, 9:17 AM Why Young Attorneys Fear Working in Rural Areas and Why They Shouldn’t – NWSidebar

https://nwsidebar.wsba.org/2022/03/22/why-young-attorneys-fear-working-in-rural-areas-and-why-they-shouldnt/ 7/7

      

21

https://www.facebook.com/wastatebar.main/
https://twitter.com/wastatebar
https://www.youtube.com/user/WashingtonStateBar
https://www.linkedin.com/company/washington-state-bar-association/

	0 - WSBA - STAR Committee May AGENDA with HMA Edits (002)
	Small Town and Rural Committee
	AGENDA
	2021 - 2022 STAR Committee Meeting Schedule


	0a- STAR Committee Charter v3 BOG Approved_202107016
	1 - STAR Meeting Minutes_3.17_DRAFT_CG with HMA Edits
	Small Town and Rural Committee
	Introductions, February Meeting Recap, and Approval of February Meeting Minutes (Gov. Abell)
	WSBA Updates (Gov. Abell and Julianne)
	Subcommittee Report Updates
	Community, Education, and Outreach (Kari Petrasek, Chair)
	Pipeline Placement Program (Laurie Powers, Chair)
	Job Opportunities and Clearinghouse (Betsy Penoyar, Chair)

	Ambassador Program Proposal (Betsy Penoyar)
	Posting of Rural Job Opportunities by WSBA (Katie Burke)
	Potential Subcommittee Reorganization (Gov. Abell)
	STAR Committee Recruitment and Appointments (Julianne Unite)
	Rural Justice Collaborative
	Other Business
	Next Steps/ Conclusion
	Adjournment

	2- NEW Board NomCom Cover Memo Template and Information_FY23_FINAL
	2a- small-town-and-rural-committee-volunteer-position-description_final_07-12-2021
	7 - Why Young Attorneys Fear Working in Rural Areas and Why They Shouldn’t – NWSidebar



